
Page 1

AGENDA 
Meeting: Southern Area Licensing Sub Committee

Place: Meeting Room - City Hall, Malthouse Lane, Salisbury, SP2 7TU

Date: Wednesday 2 March 2016

Time: 10.30 am
Matter: Application for Variation of a Club Premises Certificate, Salisbury 

Lawn Tennis Club, Old Blandford Road, Harnham, Salisbury

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Lisa Moore, tel 01722 434560 or email 
lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk, of Democratic Services, County Hall, Bythesea Road, 
Trowbridge, BA14 8JN.

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225)713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

Membership:

Cllr Jose Green
Cllr George Jeans

Cllr Leo Randall

Reserve Member

Cllr Peter Evans

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request.

If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details 
above.

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/


Page 3

AGENDA

1  Election of Chairman 

To elect a Chairman for the meeting of the Sub Committee.

2  Apologies for Absence/Substitutions 

To receive any apologies for absence and to note any substitutions.

3  Procedure for the Meeting (Pages 5 - 12)

The Chairman will explain the attached procedure for the members of the public 
present.

4  Chairman's Announcements 

The Chairman will give details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency.

5  Declarations of Interest 

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee.

6  Licensing Application (Pages 13 - 18)

To consider and determine an application for a variation to a Club Certificate at 
Salisbury Lawn Tennis Club, Old Blandford Road, Harnham, SP2 8DG, made 
by Salisbury Lawn Tennis Club.

6a  Appendix 1 - Current Club Certificate (Pages 19 - 26)

6b  Appendix 2 - Application for a Variation (Pages 27 - 46)

6c  Appendix 3 - Map showing locations of other On Sale Premises 
(Pages 47 - 48)

6d  Appendix 4 - Flier (Pages 49 - 50)

6e  Appendix 5 - Relevant Representations (Pages 51 - 60)

6f  Appendix 6 - Detailed Plan of the Area (Pages 61 - 62)



Page 4

6g  Appendix 7 - Revised Plan After Objections (Pages 63 - 64)

6h  Appendix 8 - Club Noise Management Plan (Pages 65 - 66)



LICENSING COMMITTEE

PROCEDURAL RULES FOR THE HEARING OF LICENSING ACT 2003 
APPLICATIONS

1 Purpose

1.1 These rules have been prepared to facilitate proper consideration of licence 
applications, made under the Licensing Act 2003, by the Licensing Committee 
and its Sub Committees.

1.2 The rules set out a framework for how applications are to be heard and 
explain the role of the participants at the Hearing.

2 Definitions

2.1 The following definitions describe the participants at and the subject matter of 
a Hearing:

“Applicant” means the person who has submitted an Application for 
consideration by the Committee.

“Applicant’s Premises” means premises subject to the Application.

“Applicant’s Representative” means a person attending a Hearing to assist 
or represent an Applicant including a lawyer.

“Application” means an application for the Grant/Variation/Transfer/Review 
and any other decision to be made by the Committee/Sub-Committee in 
respect of a Licence.

“Chairperson” means the Member who is the Chairperson of the Committee 
for the particular Hearing.

“Committee” means the Council’s Licensing Committee and includes any 
Sub Committee of the Licensing Committee.

“Committee Lawyer” means the Council’s Lawyer (including an external 
Lawyer instructed by the Council’s Legal & Democratic Services Manager) 
who is present at a Hearing to advise the Chairperson and the Members.

“Committee Manager” means the Council’s Officer who is present at a 
Hearing to take minutes.

“Committee Report” means the Licensing Officer’s written report to the 
Committee concerning an Application, a copy of which has been previously 
made available to the Applicant or their Representative, a Responsible 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Authority or their Representative or any person who has made a Relevant 
Representation or their Representative.

“Hearing” means a meeting of the Committee at which an Application is 
considered.

“Licence” means a Licence which the Committee has the power or duty inter 
alia to grant, transfer, suspend or revoke.

“Licensing Officer” means the Council’s Licensing Officer(s) who is/are 
present at a Hearing to present reports in respect of an Application and to give 
technical advice in respect of an Application to the Committee when 
requested.

“Licensing Authority” the Council in whose geographical area the subject 
matter of the Application relates to, and includes the Council’s Licensing 
Committee, any Sub Committee of the Licensing Committee and a Licensing 
Officer.

“Member” means a Member who is a Member of the Committee that is 
considering an Application.

“Person making a Relevant Representation” means a person who is 
present at a Hearing to make representations in respect of an Application and 
includes any person who is present to assist or make representations on 
behalf of that person including a Lawyer.

“Responsible Authority” means a person who is present at a Hearing to 
make representations in respect of an Application in their capacity as 
Responsible Authority and includes any person who is present to assist or 
make representations on behalf of the Responsible Authority including a 
Lawyer.

3 Key Principles

3.1 The principles of ‘natural justice’, and Article 6 ‘Right to a Fair Trial’, which is 
one of the Convention Rights in the Human Rights Act 1998, require that there 
is a fair Hearing of Applications.

3.2 Natural justice is an umbrella term for the legal standards of basic fairness. 
This will include that:

3.2.1 the Applicant has an opportunity to make representations before a 
decision is made;

3.2.2 those making representations have an opportunity to voice their 
representations before a decision is made;

3.2.3 the Applicant has an adequate opportunity to consider and respond to 
any submissions made by a Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or 
any person/s who have made a Relevant Representation;

Page 6



3.2.4 the Committee does not exclude an Applicant from a Hearing in order 
to consider submissions from a Responsible Authority/Authorities 
and/or any person/s who have made a Relevant Representation.

3.3 It is also fundamental that there is an orderly presentation of submissions at a 
Hearing so that the relevant issues are properly understood, evidence is 
tested and that oral statements made at the Hearing are accurately recorded.

3.4 Ultimately the Chairperson determines the application of these rules, having 
regard to any submissions being made by those present and in particular the 
Committee Lawyer.

4 The Hearing

4.1 The Hearing shall take place in public.

4.1.1 The Committee may exclude the public from all or part of the Hearing 
where it considers it to be in the public interest to do so and, in 
accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985, as amended. Public includes a party and any person assisting or 
representing a party.

4.1.2 The Committee may require any person attending the Hearing who, in 
its opinion, is behaving in a disruptive manner, to leave the Hearing and 
may:

A refuse to permit them to return;
B permit them to return only on such conditions as the Committee 

may specify;
C in the event that a person is required to leave a Hearing that person 

may, before the end of the Hearing, submit to the Committee in 
writing any information which they would have given orally.

4.2 Prior to the Hearing commencing, the Chairperson shall advise the parties of 
the procedure it proposes to follow at the Hearing.

4.3 Where a party has previously requested permission for a person(s), other than 
their representative, to appear at the Hearing then the Committee shall 
consider whether to permit that request.

4.4 The Committee will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 
which to exercise their rights.

4.5 This equal maximum time may have been notified in advance of the Hearing;

4.6 Where there are a number of people who have attended the Hearing to make 
the same representation then the Committee would normally require that a 
spokesperson be appointed by them to make the representations on behalf of 
all of those who have made Relevant Representations .

Page 7



5 Presentation of Submissions

5.1 The Chairperson will introduce the Application.

5.2 In the event that the Licensing Authority has given notice to a party requiring 
clarification on a point(s) then that party shall respond to the points raised by 
the Licensing Authority.

5.3 Submissions shall be made in the following order unless the Chairperson 
directs otherwise:

5.3.1 The Licensing Officer will orally present the Committee Report and will 
in particular advise the Committee as to:

A the options available to it;
B the considerations that are relevant in reaching its decision.

5.3.2 The Applicant (or the Applicant’s Representative) will orally present its 
submission which may include:

A presenting their case in accordance with the papers, which will have 
been circulated with Agenda papers;

B confirming key information and answer pertinent questions; and
C calling witnesses in support of the Application (see paragraph 4.3).

5.3.3 A Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any person/s who have 
made a Relevant Representation will orally present their 
representations in turn which shall include:

A the grounds of the representation to the Application; and
B any condition(s) that the Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or 

any person/s who have made a Relevant Representation  would be 
happy to have the Application granted subject to which would cause 
the representation to be withdrawn.

6 Questioning of Submissions

6.1 The Chairperson will regulate the order in which questions are asked by 
Members.

6.2 The Chairperson and Members, voiced through the Chairperson, may 
question any party following the completion of their submission.

6.3 The Chairperson will normally permit the Applicant, a Responsible 
Authority/Authorities or any person/s who have made a Relevant 
Representation to ask questions through them of the other parties.

6.4 The Chairperson may direct that questions which are not relevant to the 
Application or one of the four Licensing Objectives are not formally put or 
answered.

Page 8



7 Documentation

7.1 No party shall present new documentation to the Committee at the Hearing 
other than with the consent of all of the other parties. This does not preclude 
the Licensing Officer from correcting errors, providing updated information or 
an extract from a local map showing the Applicant’s Premises in the context of 
the surrounding premises and any person/s who have made a Relevant 
Representation . If any party is granted permission to present supplementary 
papers at the Hearing they shall provide at least 10 copies at the start of their 
submission.

8 Intervention

The Chairperson shall permit the following interventions at any point in the Hearing:

8.1 The Committee Lawyer to advise the Committee on issues of law, procedure 
and relevant considerations on decision making. If necessary, the Chairperson 
may require the Committee, the Committee Lawyer and the Committee 
Manager to leave the Hearing so that advice can be given.

8.2 The Committee Manager to advise the Committee on procedure generally, or 
to request that statements made are repeated for reasons of clarity and so 
that they can be properly recorded.

8.3 The Licensing Officer to seek to clarify statements that have been made in 
light of information held on their file.

9 Failure of Parties to Attend Hearing

9.1 If a party has informed the Licensing Authority that it does not intend to attend 
or be represented at a Hearing, the Hearing may proceed in its absence.

9.2 If a party has not indicated that it does not intend to attend or be represented 
at a Hearing and fails to attend or be represented at the Hearing then the 
Licensing Authority may:

9.2.1 where it considers it be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the 
Hearing to a specified date; or

9.2.2 hold the Hearing in the party's absence.

9.3 Where the Licensing Authority holds a Hearing in the absence of a party, it 
shall consider at the Hearing the application, representations or notice  made 
by that party.

10 Closing Submissions

10.1 The Chairperson shall allow first, the Responsible Authority/Authorities and 
any person/s who have made a Relevant Representation to make a closing 
oral submission(s) and secondly invite the Applicant or the Applicant’s 
Representative an opportunity to make an oral closing submission in support 
of the Application.

Page 9



11 Decision

11.1 The Committee, the Committee Lawyer and the Committee Manager, shall 
retire so that the decision may be considered in private, and to consider any 
legal issues raised by the Members.

11.2 The decision, and reasons for the decision, of the Committee shall be
communicated orally by the Chairperson to the parties after the Committee 
has deliberated in private on the Application.

11.3 Written reasons shall be provided soon after the deliberations of the 
Application and in any event within the statutory time limits.

Page 10



Hearing Procedure Summary

1. The Democratic Services Officer will request nominations for a Chairman for the 
Hearing.

2. The Chairperson welcomes all those present and introduces the Application.

3. The Chairperson introduces the members of the Sub Committee and invites all 
parties present (Applicant, Responsible Authority/Authorities,  any person/s who 
have made a Relevant Representation and Council Officers) to introduce 
themselves.

4. The Chairperson outlines the Hearing Procedure as set out in the Agenda, makes 
any relevant announcements and asks for any declarations of interest.

5. The Licensing Officer is asked to present their Committee Report.

6. The Applicant/their representative is invited to address the Sub Committee in 
support of their application.

7. Questions to the Applicant by Members of the Sub Committee.

8. Questions to the Applicant by Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any 
person/s who have made a Relevant Representation which are to be directed 
through the Chairperson.

9. Any Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any person/s who have made a 
Relevant Representation are invited to address the Sub Committee in support of 
their representations.

10. Questions to the Responsible Authorities/those who have made a Relevant 
Representation by Members of the Sub Committee.

11. Questions to the Responsible Authorities/those who have made a Relevant 
Representation by the Applicant, which are to be directed through the Chairperson.

12. Closing submissions by those Parties who have made a Relevant Representation 
in reverse order.

13. Closing submissions by the Applicant.

14. Sub Committee retires with the Committee Lawyer and Committee Manager to 
consider its decision.

15. Sub Committee returns and the Lawyer gives a summary of any legal advice that 
may have been given to the Sub Committee.

16. The Chairperson either gives the decision with reasons, or advises that it will be 
released in writing with reasons within the statutory time limits (5 working days).

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



WILTSHIRE COUNCIL

SOUTHERN AREA LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

2 March 2016
___________________________________________________________________

Application for a Variation to a Club Certificate; Salisbury Lawn Tennis Club, 
Old Blandford Road, Harnham, SP2 8DG 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To determine an application for a variation to a Club Certificate at Salisbury 
Lawn Tennis Club, Old Blandford Road, Harnham, SP2 8DG  made by 
Salisbury Lawn Tennis Club.

2. Background Information 

2.1 This is an application for a variation to a Club Certificate at Salisbury Lawn 
Tennis Club, Old Blandford Road, Harnham, SP2 8DG made by Salisbury 
Lawn Tennis Club for which five relevant representations have been received. 

2.2 Wiltshire Council (as the Licensing Authority) must hold a hearing to consider 
the application having regard to the representations.  In accordance with 
Section 35 (3) of The Licensing Act 2003 the Licensing Sub Committee is 
required to take such of the steps listed in 2.4 below as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  In considering the 
application and the relevant representations, the Sub Committee must also 
have regard to relevant Government guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy

2.3 The licensing objectives are:

i) The Prevention of Crime and Disorder;
ii) Public Safety;
iii) The Prevention of Public Nuisance; and 
iv) The Protection of Children from Harm.

2.4 Such steps are: 

i) To modify the conditions of the licence
ii) To reject the whole or part of the application.

2.5 On 8 January 2016 an application for a variation to a Club Certificate was 
received and accepted as a valid application.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



2.6 The application as applied for is as follows:

Licensable Activity Timings Days

Change the licensed area internally 
and include the external area as a 
licensed area.

No change No Change

A copy of the Club certificate is attached  as Appendix 1, and the application 
from Salisbury Lawn Tennis Club, Old Blandford Road, Harnham, SP2 8DG is 
attached as Appendix 2.

2.7 The other premises which are licensed for off-sales of alcohol within the 
vicinity of the application address are detailed as follows: 

Premises Licensed Hours for On-
sales of Alcohol

Days No. On 
Plan

Grassmere House 
Hotel

1200 – 2330
1000 -  0000

Sunday 
Monday - Saturday

1

Greyfisher PH 1100 -2300
1100 – 0000

Drinking ceases externally 
2300

Sunday – Thursday
Friday – Saturday

2

Harnham Social Club 1200 – 2300
1000 - 0000

Sunday
Monday - Saturday

3

Rose and Crown Hotel 1000 – 0000

1000 – 0100
1000 - 0200

Sunday – Wednesday
Thursday
Friday - Saturday

4

2.8  A map showing the locations of the above premises is attached as Appendix 
3.

3. Consultation and Representations

3.1 The application process requires the application to be advertised, by the 
Applicant, in a local news publication within 10 working days, starting on the 
day after the authority receives it and for a public notice (on pale blue paper) 
to be posted on the premises. In addition the Licensing Authority advertises 
the application on its website, for a period of 28 consecutive days, starting the 
day after the authority receives the application.

  
3.2 During the consultation period five relevant representations have been 

accepted from interested parties. As a result of the Application a flier was 
circulated locally, see Appendix 4.  Representations received referred to 
details in the flier that are not a consideration under the Licensing Act 2003

. 

Page 14



3.3 Representations Received
          

 Mr Mike Fiddy
 Mr S.J. Hodder
 Mr Steve & Mrs Sarah Harris
 Mr John & Mrs Ann Leggett
 Dr. Paul & Mrs P.W. Lord

           A further 10 representations have been either rejected or withdrawn by 
interested parties, following clarification as to the scope of the application and  
the extent of activities allowed under the existing licence.

At the time of this report the Licensing Authority received 2 further 
representations that were received outside the consultation period and 
subsequently refused.

3.4      A number of objectors have referred to the fact that, if the area covered by the 
premises licence were to be extended, the Club would be entitled to have live 
and recorded music in the outside area, even though this had not specifically 
been applied for. This is because of changes to the Licensing Act in April 
2015, which provide that live and recorded music is permitted between 08:00 
and 23:00 on premises that are licensed for the supply of alcohol, provided the 
audience does not exceed 500 persons.

However, live music is already permitted between 08:00 and 23:00 on 
unlicensed premises which are deemed to be workplaces, provided the 
audience does not exceed 500 persons. The definition of a ‘workplace’ is 
found in the Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992. This 
provides that a workplace is any premises or part of premises which are not 
domestic premises and are made available to any person as a place of work. 
Some objectors have questioned whether the tennis courts, which are used for 
coaching, should be treated as a workplace. Legal advice has been sought on 
this point which concluded that tennis courts could be treated as a workplace, 
if they are used as a place of work by any person. It does not matter that they 
are outside areas, nor that the tennis coaches may be self-employed.

If it is accepted that the tennis courts are a workplace, then they could already 
be used for the performance of live music. 

3.5     Concerns were also raised with regards to recorded music.  At the moment the 
Club already has Recorded music playing outside during the cardio tennis 
sessions this is covered under the182 guidance of the Licensing Act 2003 as 
incidental to another activity, this is not regulated entertainment and any 
complaints about it would be dealt with as a statutory nuisance.

3.6 Responsible Authorities

No Responsible Authority has made a representation in connection with this 
application.

Page 15



3.7 A summary of the representations made is detailed in the table below:

Representation Licensing Objective Accepted Comments
Noise disruption due to 
sale of alcohol

Prevention of Public 
Nuisance

Yes All representations 

3.8     The relevant representations are attached as Appendix 5. 

3.9 Appendix 6 shows a detailed plan of the area.

3.10    The Applicant has made following comments in response as a result of 
objections and amended Licensable area outside Appendix 7 and submitted a 
Noise plan Appendix 8.  To allay residents’ concerns they have agreed to the 
following, however suggestions one to three could not form enforceable 
conditions on the licence as the music aspect is not licensable.

1) Cardio tennis accompanied by Music between 1500 & 1800 and will only 
be played on the Courts nearest Harnham Road and the level of Music will 
be monitored.

             2) Apart from cardio tennis recorded music will not be played outside unless 
at a Specified outside Event.

             3) Club Finals day and Lawn Tennis Open day Live and/or recorded music 
outside must only be played until 2300

             4) A further 2 Social outside events may be held per year with no more than 
150 attendees. These events will finish no later than 2300 the only exception 
is for New Year's Eve. All local neighbours will be informed 28 days 
beforehand and any noise will be kept to a minimum.

             5) If the New Year’s Eve Event takes place no alcohol will be consumed 
outside after 0000 Midnight during the Event.

            
          Having been made aware of the Applicants actions a further objector    

withdrew.

4. Legal Implications

4.1 This hearing is governed by the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations. 
These provide that hearings should be held in public unless the Licensing 
Authority considers that the public interest in excluding the public outweighs 
the public interest in the hearing taking place in public.

4.2 The applicant, and all persons who have made representations have been 
informed of the date, time and location of the hearing and their right to attend 
and be represented.

4.3 At the hearing all those who have made representations are entitled to 
address the Sub Committee and to ask questions of another party, with the 
consent of the Sub Committee. 

Page 16



5. Officer Recommendations

5.1 Officers are not permitted to make a recommendation – the decision is to be 
reached by the members of the Licensing Sub Committee.

6. Right of Appeal

6.1 It should be noted that the Applicant and those persons who have made 
representations may appeal the decision made by the Licensing Sub 
Committee to the Magistrates Court.  The appeal must be lodged with the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of the notification of the decision.

6.2 In the event of an appeal being lodged, the decision made by the Licensing 
Sub Committee remains valid until any appeal is heard and any decision made 
by the Magistrates Court.

6.3 A Responsible Authority or any person may apply to the Licensing Authority 
for a Review of a Premises Licence.  Whether or not a Review Hearing takes 
place is in the discretion of the Licensing Authority, but, if requested by a 
person other than a Responsible Authority it will not normally be granted within 
the first 12 months except for the most compelling circumstances.

Report Author:

Ian Garrod, Licensing Enforcement Officer, Bourne Hill, Salisbury, SP1 3UZ 
01722 432484

Date of report:  23 February 2016

Background Papers Used in the Preparation of this Report

 The Licensing Act 2003
 The Licensing Act (Hearings) Regulations 2005
 Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
 Wiltshire Council Licensing Policy

Appendices

1 Club Certificate
2      Variation of Club Certificate Application form and Plan
3      Map showing locations of other On Sale Premises
4      Flier
5      Relevant representations
6      Detailed plan of the area      
7      Revised Plan after objections
8      Club Noise Management Plan

     

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19

Agenda Item 6a



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27

Agenda Item 6b



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47

Agenda Item 6c



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49

Agenda Item 6d



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51

Agenda Item 6e



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61

Agenda Item 6f



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63

Agenda Item 6g



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

Agenda Item 6h



Page 66


	Agenda
	3 Procedure for the Meeting
	6 Licensing Application
	6a Appendix 1 - Current Club Certificate
	6b Appendix 2 - Application for a Variation
	6c Appendix 3 - Map showing locations of other On Sale Premises
	6d Appendix 4 - Flier
	6e Appendix 5 - Relevant Representations
	6f Appendix 6 - Detailed Plan of the Area
	6g Appendix 7 - Revised Plan After Objections
	6h Appendix 8 - Club Noise Management Plan

